# Team Manager Booklet







The team managers meeting will take place at Grant Park High School (450 Nathaniel St.) in the **Junior** Gymnasium on August 18 at 10:00 AM. To find the location, enter the following postal code into Google Maps:

### R3M 3E3

All team managers are requested to attend this meeting (maximum 2 representatives per country). Teams without a team manager are advised to send one of their athletes to the meeting.

Please read this document upon receipt and bring it with you to the team manager's meeting.

Version 1.0 - 11 August 2025

















# **Welcome Word from The LOC**

Hello! Welcome to Winnipeg! We're so glad to have you with us for this prestigious tournament.

In 2025 our city, in the heart of North America, hosts its first World Archery event and we hope you are as excited to be here as we are to have you.

Winnipeg has forged itself a unique identity, shaped as much by temperature extremes from -40°C in winter to 40°C in summer as it is by its isolation. It has created a vibrant cultural scene and given birth to some outstanding musical, artistic, literary and theatrical works. As a city with a steady economy that neither booms nor busts, we've been able to preserve history in ways many cities wish they had. Our Exchange District is a showcase of turn of the 20th century architecture.

Our many attractions include the Winnipeg Zoo, with its Journey to Churchill exhibit — offering an underwater view of polar bears — is one of the most comprehensive northern species exhibits in the world. Our Quamajug-Winnipeg Art Gallery combines curated classical art with carefully selected Inuit works, and the Canadian Museum for Human Rights, which you will see during the medal rounds at The Forks, is both fascinating and educational.

On behalf of our organizing committee, we wish your team excellent results and a fantastic stay in Winnipeg.

Sincerely,

Kelly Taylor Chairman





### Contents

Welcome Word from The LOC	
Introduction	-
1.1 Opening	-
1.2 Important dates for the outdoor season	-
Contacts	-
Technical aspects of the competition	-
3.1 Number of participants per category 6	-
3.2 Competition programme	-
3.3 Practice7	-
3.4 Equipment inspection 8	
3.5 Rounds9	-
3.6 Appeal procedure9	
Results	-
4.1 Timing control system	-
4.2 Results system	-
Reminder on Rules	-
5.1 Dress regulations - 11	
5.2 Rules update	
5.3 Accreditation cards rules	
5.4 Liability Waiver	
Logistics	-
6.1 Transportation and Communications	
6 .2 Meals during the event	
6.3 Internet Access and additional hotel charges	-
6.4 Medical related issues	-
6.5 Bow Storage	
Protocol, ceremonies, clean sport	-
7.1 Medal ceremonies	-
7.2 Mixed zone and press conferences: 16	
7.3 Clean sport	
7.4 Opening ceremonies	-
7.5 Outdoor Environmental Safety Policy 17	-
Archery venues19	
Qualifications and eliminations	-
Finals venue 20	
Mixed team nomination form21	-
Appeal Form22	
ASSUMPTION OF RISK AND RELEASE FORM23	





# Introduction

### 1.1 Opening

- Brought to order by the World Archery head of events and marketing (HE), Mr. T. Aubert
- Introduction of the panel, by World Archery HE, Mr T. Aubert
- Roll call of all attending nations (HE)
- Welcome speech, by Organising Committee
- Jury of Appeal, by World Archery HE

### 1.2 Important dates for the outdoor season

Date	Event	Entry Deadline Type
15 August 2025	Hyundai World Archery Championships - Gwangju	Final
01 September 2025	World Archery Para Championships - Gwangju	Final





# **Contacts**

Organisation Management		
Co-Chair		
Kelly Taylor	+1 (204) 599-1258	
Karl Balisch	+1 (204) 914-3712	
Ryan Van Berkel	+1 (204) 291-1775	
Registration		
Priyanka Dhanie	+1 (204) 914-3718	
Blaire Mahoney	+1 (204) 914-4279	
Event Manager		
Ree Dion	+1 (204) 230-6330	
Event Co-Ordinator		
Leticia Malavasi	+1 (204) 599-4216	
World Archery Federation		
Thomas AUBERT – head of events and marketing	+41 79 664 99 27	
Chris WELLS – head of communications		
Tournament Judge Commission		
Andrea AGUILAR - chairperson	Hossein NASIRINEJAD – deputy chairperson	
Paola PRASCHKER	Metka VODUSEK	
Ahmed KOURA	Curtis HIRST	
Erick LEITE	Marie SALIOU	
Niels BUITENHUIS	Rani VAN DEN BULCK	
Michael ONESCHUK	Man Wa WONG	
Haizea TELLETXEA AGUILAR		
Director of Shooting		
Karen PAN		
Jury of Appeal		
To be announced during the meeting.		







# Technical aspects of the competition

### 3.1 Number of participants per category

Updated 30 July 2025

Member Associations: 63

	Indiv	idual	Т	eams	5	Mixed	Teams
Recurve Under 21 Men	87	1/48	2	2 1/	/12	27	1/12
Recurve Under 21 Women	66	1/48	1	7 1/	/12		_,
Compound Under 21 Men	61	1/48	1	1 1/	/8	16	1/12
Compound Under 21 Women	68	1/24	1	6 1/	/8		,
Recurve Under 18 Men	103	1/48	2	6 1/	/12	40	1/12
Recurve Under 18 Women	101	1/48	2.	3 1/	/12		_,
Compound Under 18 Men	37	1/24	!	9 1/	/8	17	1/12
Compound Under 18 Women	47	1/24	1	0 1/	/8		-,

### 3.2 Competition programme

The current version of the schedule, at the moment of writing the team managers booklet is v1.0 (11 August 2025, 07:45 UTC).

Please frequently refer to World Archery website for latest updates of the schedule, as changes may occur during the week. There will be two competition fields, one for men and one for women all throughout qualification and elimination.





### 3.3 Practice

The layout of the practice range will **stay the same** each day and is as follows:

5 at 5m

11 at 50m

11 at 60m

11 at 70m

The times at which the practice fields will be open are as follows:

	Finals Practice Venue (Whittier Park)	Qualification Practice Venue (Grant Park)
Saturday August 16	N/A	9:00 – 16:00
Sunday August 17	N/A	9:00 – 16:30
Monday August 18	N/A	8:00 – 17:00
Tuesday August 19	N/A	7:30 – 18:00
Wednesday August 20	N/A	7:30 – 18:00
Thursday August 21	N/A	8:00 – 15:00
Friday August 22	9:00 – 16:30	N/A
Saturday August 23	9:00 – 16:30	N/A
Sunday August 24	9:00 – 16:30	N/A

### **Qualification round practice**

- 3 ends of 3 minutes practice on the Field of Play for qualification to immediately follow once the field is reset.
- Non-competing athletes can use the practice field.
- There is transportation for teams between the qualification field, practice range and official event hotels. Bus schedule will be published online as well as displayed in the official event hotel lobbies.

### **Finals practice**

- The practice venue will move to the address noted below as of Friday, August 22.
- Only athletes who are competing in the Finals on August 22-24 will have access to the practice field near the Finals Venue.
- There is transportation for athletes between the finals field, practice range and official event hotels. Bus Schedule will be published online as well as displayed in the official event hotel lobbies

The practice venues can be found at the following addresses:

Grant Park – 500 Nathanial St., R3M 3E3 Whittier Park - 836 Rue St Joseph, R2Y 0H8





### 3.4 Equipment inspection

The equipment inspection will be done by alphabetical order during official practice, athletes must bring the equipment they will be using during the competition, as well as spare equipment, and shall wear official team uniform. In the exceptional case of needing to use borrowed equipment, the athlete borrowing the equipment shall make the judges aware of the situation.

The equipment inspection will not be limited to only the official practice, judges can, at any time during the competition, require inspecting an athlete's bow.

World Archery will use electronic bow scales for equipment inspection.

### Preamble to Chapter 11:

This article lays down the type of equipment athletes are permitted to use when shooting in World Archery competitions. It is the athlete's responsibility to use equipment which complies with the rules. Any athlete found to be using equipment contravening World Archery Rules may have his scores disqualified. Described below are the specific regulations that apply to each division followed by the regulations that apply to all divisions.

- 15.1.5 Any athlete found to be using equipment contravening World Archery Rules may have his scores partly or fully cancelled (see 11. Chapter 11-Athletes Equipment).
  - All teams are to wear their team uniform with their name and have their valid accreditation during official practice
  - Spare equipment must also be brought for inspection.
  - Team managers are to check the details of their athletes such as, name, date of birth is correct beforehand.
  - Inform the Judge if details are not correct and the Judge will inform World Archery Results Team. Instructions to use the tablet scoring system will be carried out if requested.

### **Athlete (back) Numbers**

Athlete numbers will be issued on the day of the qualification round (with the score cards) during practice.

Athlete numbers must be worn on the quiver or thigh, facing the waiting line while shooting, throughout the event including finals.

### The Environment

Team managers, please instruct your team members to use the litter bins located on the competition, practice ranges and common areas at all times.

### Water

To aid the environment, participants will be provided with reusable water bottles in their participants' package. Water stations will be available throughout the venues where athletes can refill their bottles. In Winnipeg, tap water in your hotel is safe to drink and water bottles can be filled at your hotel.

### **Non-Smoking**

This is a non-smoking event.

Smoking is forbidden inside public buildings and all competition and training areas. This also includes electronic cigarettes, refer to book 3, Art.12.8.





### 3.5 Rounds

Target faces will **NOT** be changed after practice arrows. During a session, they will be changed only if the judges require it. Please instruct your athletes to mark all arrow holes during practice and competition.

The sessions will start on time, when there are no practice arrows scheduled on the competition venue, the matches will start as soon as the field is ready. Athletes should be alert and prepared for their matches to start earlier than scheduled.

In case of a bye, athletes may be allowed to shoot on their own target, provided the competition schedule allows. If the competition schedule allows, no score will be recorded or displayed and athletes shooting their bye must respect the DOS timing and signals of the competition. Recurve athletes are permitted to shoot 3 sets of practice and compound athletes are permitted to shoot 5 ends of practice for their bye.

### 3.6 Appeal procedure

- An Appeal form is attached to this document.
- In case of an intent to appeal or an actual appeal, the times indicated on the Appeal form must be considered.
- Appeal forms should be given to the Chairman of the Tournament Judge Commission or to their deputy.
- A fee of 50 USD (or 50 EUR) must be paid to the Chairman of the Tournament Judge Commission, for the appeal to be valid.
- If the appeal is upheld by the Jury of Appeal, the fee will be returned. In the case of the appeal being rejected, the fee will not be returned.





## **Results**

### 4.1 Timing control system

World Archery timing equipment will be used for timing and scoreboards on preliminary rounds and finals. During qualifications and elimination rounds, the clock will run until the end, without interruption of the Director of Shooting.

### 4.2 Results system

- Qualification Round scoring will be completed by athletes. One athlete records, on the official paper-based score sheet, the scores of all other athletes on that target. At the same time, another athlete, on that same target, will enter all the scores of the athletes on that target into the scoring tablet.
- Scorecards MUST be signed by both the athlete and the scorer, have all the totals mathematically correct with the 10s+Xs and X count fully completed. Any scorecards where the 10s+Xs and X count are not completed a "0" will be given for the total of 10s+Xs and X count for that athlete. Any score cards not signed or the score total is missing will result in disqualification.
- Elimination Round scoring will be completed by athletes. One athlete/team records the arrow values of both athletes/teams on the paper score sheet. While at the same time, the other athlete/team inputs the arrow values into the scoring tablet. Both athletes/teams should verify that all scores are written and entered correctly before returning back to the shooting line.
- At the end of the match, the scorecard must be fully completed and signed by the athletes (or agent/judge in the case of finals) involved in the match.
- Scoring tablets will be used during the Qualification and Elimination Rounds, but not in the Finals. Mr. Andrea Gabardi is responsible for the results of the event.
- IMPORTANT NOTE: There will be internet access in the official hotels and the venues. Because of this we will not distribute any printed results and information.





# **Reminder on Rules**

### 5.1 Dress regulations

20.1.1 During the Olympic Games, World Championships, World Ranking Events and World Cup Events, athletes and team officials shall dress in sports clothing on the field of play.

- All members of one team by category shall be dressed in the same team uniform. The teams of one country may wear different design and colour uniforms. Team officials may wear a different style but should wear the same colours and should be easily identified as the official of their team;
- Athletes shall wear trousers, shorts, dresses, skirts or divided skirts of their choice; however, this legwear may not be shorter than the athlete's fingertips when the arms and fingers are extended at the athlete's side. They shall wear long or short sleeved shirts, blouses, or tops, however, the upper body clothing must be fixed over each shoulder covering the front and back of the body while still covering the midriff when the athlete is at full draw.
- No denim or jeans, regardless the colour, or camouflage clothes and equipment may be worn nor any oversize or baggy type pants or shorts;
- During the Team and Mixed Team match play competition the same colour and style shirt/blouse/top and the same colour pants/shorts/skirts shall be worn;
- Due to weather conditions, protective clothing such as sweaters, track suits, raingear, etc. may be worn following approval by the Technical Delegate of the event, or, in his absence, the Chairperson of the Tournament Judge Commission;
- Headwear is optional;
- During finals with TV coverage, undershirts, compression shirts or sleeves may be used on condition that they match the predominant colour of the team shirt or are white (might include design, names or markings but the predominant colour should be white).

### 5.2 Rules update

The current World Archery Constitution and Rules is to be applied for this event (version 2025-01-15)

### Time to shoot an arrow:

The timing applied to World Archery Youth Championships is 30 seconds per arrow in qualifications and eliminations, 20 seconds per arrow in team matches and alternate shooting.

### **Equipment Failure:**

12.2.3. No extra time shall be allowed for equipment failure or the treatment of medical problems, but the athlete concerned may leave the shooting line to resolve the issue and return to shoot any remaining arrow(s) if the time limit permits. In the Team Event other member(s) of the team may shoot in the meantime.

### 5.3 Accreditation cards rules

### Rule Book 2 - 3.8 Accreditation

- 3.8.1.1. Proof of accreditation shall be carried at all times on the competition area and shall be shown on request of appropriate officials.
- 3.8.1.2. Only holders of appropriate accreditation shall be allowed onto the relevant parts of the competition area.

### **Accreditation card:**

Athletes and team officials, registered in WAREOS, will be issued a World Archery accreditation and lanyard. Please ensure all details are correctly entered in WAREOS.





Only one accreditation will be issued, with a lanyard, for all the 2025 season. Athletes and team officials should bring their accreditation to all World Archery events such as, all World Championships, Hyundai Archery World Cup stages and the Hyundai Archery World Cup Final.

Accreditation will consist of, a photograph, full name, role, category/bow discipline, country of representation, individual World Archery ID code and access privileges.

All accreditations will need to be validated and activated on site at each of the separate World Archery events.

There is a QR code on all accreditations that will be scanned to enter and exit the competition areas. Only athletes scheduled to compete at certain stages of the event are permitted on the Field of Play, together with one coach/official.

### **Photographs**

Will be taken on venue the day prior to official practice. For athlete who do not already have one.

For a valid photograph, persons are to smile and wear their official Member Association team uniform. No hats or sunglasses can be worn.

Photos are used for both event accreditation and website biographies.

Athletes and team official profile photographs expire after 24 months. Athletes and team officials whose photographs have expired will be contacted to schedule a time during the week to retake the picture, in order to avoid affluence and gathering at accreditation booth.

Any athlete or official that desires to update their photograph in the system can go to the accreditation area to do so during the competition week.

### Lost/Damage/Replacement costs:

For those persons that unfortunately forget to bring, damage or lose their accreditation, can purchase another accreditation from World Archery accreditation area at the event for the cost of 30 CHF (EUR/USD or local currency will be accepted, at a rate to be displayed on site).

### **Upgrade card**

Upgrade cards are available for those teams that do not have a coach or team manager available on their team and wish to have a coach for their athlete/team's match.

An upgrade card can be allocated to another athlete or accredited person to perform the role of coach for a specific athlete at that particular event.

Upgrade cards (serial numbered) are individually allocated/valid to an individual person for a particular event athlete/team. As soon as the athlete/team is out of the competition, the upgrade card is no longer active.

For an upgrade card to be issued, an Accreditation Upgrade Form needs to be completed and signed by the Team Manager, President, or Secretary General of the Member Association of the athlete/team to be coached. This form can be completed in advance by completing the form in annex or at venue.

Each upgrade cards costs 30 CHF (EUR/USD or local currency will be accepted, at a rate to be displayed on site).

Upgrade cards will not be available for teams who already reach the maximum number of officials allowed according to World Archery rule (Book 2, Chapter 3, Article 3.7.3.3.) or to individuals registered as guests. Remember, as stated in the World Archery rules, only 1 accredited team official per athlete is allowed with a maximum of 4 officials if a team has more than 4 athletes competing on the field of play.

### Accreditation process

Before arriving at the event, make sure with your Member Association that all payments are done, and that you carry all necessary payment proofs if they are not already registered in your summary of costs on WAREOS.





Step 1

 Make your way to the LOC office. Proceed with all remaining payments and obtain from LOC your invoices and the Team nomination form, which must be stamped by the Organising committee, proving that all payments are done.

Step 2

Control the team list, and all information it contains. If you have an
individual change, strikethrough the name to be removed, and handwrite the new name to insert. Date and sign the document BEFORE
you come to accreditation office.

Step 3

 Bring the document, and athletes listed in "Missing picture" to the accreditation booth to recover accreditation and take the missing picture.

Note: Athlete in the "picture to retake" section, will need to come later during the week when all accreditation process is over, priority is given to missing pictures.

Accreditation will open on Sunday 17 August at 09:00, at the venue.

### 5.4 Liability Waiver

All participants, along with their parent or legal guardian in the case of minors, are required to review and sign the liability waiver included in the appendix. This signed waiver must be submitted at the latest by the Team Manager's Meeting, confirming acknowledgment and acceptance of the outlined terms and conditions.





# Logistics

### 6.1 Transportation and Communications

For those staying in the official hotels, transportation will be offered to and from both the qualification venue as well as to the finals venue. Transportation schedules will be available in the hotel lobbies.

### 6.2 Meals during the event

Meals from August 16–24 are provided for participants staying in official hotels. Except for August 21 (see Gala below) all breakfasts and dinners are served at your official hotel. Lunch will be available at the venues as described below:

### **Breakfast**

Served in hotel dining halls
 August 16 – 18: 06:30 - 08:30
 August 19 – 24: 05:30 - 08:30

### Lunch

- August 16th: Provided at your hotel 11:00 13:00
- Lunch August 17–21: Served at the Qualification venue at the Lunch Tent located by the Athlete Drop Off bus loop. |
   11:30am 1pm for afternoon athletes

12:30pm – 2pm for morning athlete.

All participants will be provided with a Lunch card which will be punched upon entry to the lunch tent

• Lunch August 22–24: Meal vouchers will be provided for The Forks Market, a vibrant indoor/outdoor food court just 200m from the Finals venue

### **Dinner**

Served in hotel dining halls

August 16-17: 17:30 – 19:30 August 18: 18:00 – 20:00

August 19-20: 17:00 - 19:00 & 20:00 - 21:30 August 21: See Gala information

August 22: 18:00 – 20:00 August 23-24: 17:30 – 19:30

Teams should have posted any diet restriction on WAREOS. The LOC will accommodate any dietary restrictions that were submitted through WAREOS.

### World of Archery Gala - Thursday, August 21st

Athletes, team officials and VIPs are invited to our World of Archery Gala event Thursday, August 21st from 19:00 to 21:00 at the historic Fort Garry Hotel, featuring a variety of food stations, music and the opportunity to socialize with athletes from all attending countries. Transportation from official hotels to the venue and back will be provided.

### 6.3 Internet Access and additional hotel charges

All official hotels have complimentary internet access. There will be wifi for participants at the Competition venues:

<sup>\*</sup>Times will adjust to the competition schedule as and when required.

<sup>\*</sup> The Gala replaces dinner at your hotel for that day.





Network SSID: WAYC2025 password: Win\$2025arc

All other hotel expenses including laundry and minibar, etc will be covered by the participants themselves.

Any damages will be charged to the participants' national team.

### 6.4 Medical related issues

Criti Care EMS will provide standby Emergency Medical Services at both competition venues, ensuring the safety and well-being of all athletes, officials, and spectators.

In cases of emergencies in official hotels, contact the front desk or call 9-1-1 for emergency services (ambulance, Police, Fire). Team managers please inform the LOC or volunteers in each official hotel should there be an emergency.

The closest hospitals for emergencies are:

### **St Boniface Hospital**

409 Tache Ave, Winnipeg, MB R2H 2A6 Emergency room: Open 24 hours Phone: (204) 233-8563

### **Health Sciences Centre Winnipeg**

820 Sherbrook St, Winnipeg, MB R3A 1R9 Emergency room: Open 24 hours Phone: (204) 787-3661

### 6.5 Bow Storage

Secure bow case storage will be provided on-site at the Qualification Venue in the Charles A. Barbour Arena, located next to the Athlete Drop Off bus loop.





# Protocol, ceremonies, clean sport

### 7.1 Medal ceremonies

All athletes involved in the ceremonies are requested to go to the gathering point by the athletes' entrance to the main FoP, equipment can be stored in the staging area until the end of the corresponding victory ceremony.

Medal ceremonies will be conducted immediately after the interview of gold medal winner of each category during the days of the finals (please check the competition schedule).

Athletes are requested to proceed straight to the mixed zone or the ceremony area.

### 7.2 Mixed zone and press conferences:

Interviews will take place at the Mixed Zone and athletes will be requested to pass through the mixed zone to speak with the media.

### 7.3 Clean sport

### **Anti-doping**

Anti-Doping control will follow World Archery rules.

Athletes should bring their passports and/or accreditation cards to the anti-doping control station if selected for a test.

### **Alcohol test**

Athletes and officials should also be available for random alcohol testing during the competition, following World Archery rules.

Alcohol testing can be performed at any moment on anyone that is present on accredited areas of the field of play.

### 2.3.4 Alcohol Test

Alcohol is a banned substance in archery. No person on the field of play shall consume alcohol or be under the influence of alcohol as prohibited in 2.3.4. Alcohol Test. Athletes selected for Anti-Doping Sample collection shall also be tested for alcohol. Tests may be carried out at any time during the Competition at any International Event at the discretion of the person designated by World Archery to conduct the Alcohol Test, or by the Organising Committee if World Archery has not designated any such person.

### 2.3.4.1 Procedure for alcohol tests

The alcohol test is performed by the testing of exhaled air. If the test of exhaled air exceeds the doping violation threshold of 0.1 per mile, a second test of exhaled air will be performed 10 minutes later using a different breathalyser. If the second test of exhaled air still exceeds the threshold, this will result in a positive alcohol test.

15.5 Consequences of a Positive Alcohol Test

15.5.1 If an alcohol test performed on a person subject to 2.3.4. Alcohol Test in Book 1 results in positive before the end of an Event, such person shall be withdrawn from the Event and the case will be forwarded to the Board of Justice and Ethics for further sanctions.

15.5.2 Consequences are:





- Disqualification of the Event;
- 1 year of ineligibility for the first offense;
- 4 years of ineligibility for the second offense;
- Life ban for the third offense.

### 7.4 Opening ceremonies

The Opening Ceremonies will take place at the Qualification Field on Monday, August 18th at noon. We are asking for each country to nominate an archer or other team representative to take part in the parade of flags. The ceremony will last between 30-45 min and will feature cultural entertainment.

### 7.5 Outdoor Environmental Safety Policy

Outdoor environmental conditions can have a direct and immediate impact on the safety of participants, judges, staff, volunteers, and spectators, as well as on the integrity of the competition venue. The Archery Canada Outdoor Environmental Safety Policy will provide guidance on responding to a range of environmental hazards that may arise during the World Archery Youth Championships.

### Lightning

When deemed necessary, one of the responsible individuals will monitor forecasts, weather warnings and Environment Canada's Lightning Danger Maps (https://weather.gc.ca/lightning/index\_e.html). For the Championships, a lightning detector will be installed and monitored at both venues.

Lightning often strikes outside the area of heavy rain and may strike as far as 16km (10 miles) from any rainfall. Depending on atmospheric conditions, you can hear thunder from as far away as 20 km, or as close as 8 km (Environment Canada). When a lightning detector indicates lightning within 16 km (10 miles), the situation will be closely monitored. If subsequent readings show closer readings, even if thunder is not heard, the officials will suspend competition, clear the Field of Play and direct participants to the closest emergency Shelter.

Tournament activities will resume no less than 30 minutes after the last detected strike or rumble of Thunder.

### **Extreme Heat**

Environment Canada issues Heat and Humidex Advisories when temperatures are expected to reach or exceed 30°C/ 86°F and/or the Humidex value (a combination of humidity and temperature) is expected to reach or exceed 40°C/ 104°F (on the Humidex scale of perceived temperature). The Championships shall have the necessary equipment to monitor ambient temperatures and humidity throughout the competition.

If a reading is determined whereby activity is to be decreased (above 38 degrees C ambient/humidex/Heat Index), then readings will continue every thirty (30) minutes to determine if further activity should be disrupted or preventative steps taken, or if an increased level of activity can resume,

When ambient temperature/humidex/Heat index are between 31C-39.9C notice will be given to participants to take added precautions, stay hydrated, and take breaks in the shaded areas provided.

### **Air Quality**

Canada generally has clean air conditions, however due to dry conditions, there have been many forest fires across Canada. These fires can lead to poor air quality that can present problems. The organizers of the Championships will monitor the Environment Canada Air Quality Health Index (AQHI) daily.

Although archery is a low to moderate exertion sport, extended outdoor exposure and repetitive movement can lead to respiratory irritation. When the AQHI is 7-10, participants will be notified, and breaks may be extended. If the AQHI is 10+ it may be necessary to postpone activities until conditions improve. N95 masks will be available at the First Aid station for any participant who wishes to use one.

Participants who experience symptoms such as coughing, dizziness, shortness of breath, or chest discomfort must immediately report to the designated first aid station.







# **SAFE SPORT**

If you see something, say something.

World Archery is committed to providing a safe, respectful, and inclusive environment for all athletes, officials, and participants. Harassment, abuse, and discrimination of any kind will not be tolerated.

All participants are expected to uphold the principles of the World Archery Safeguarding Policy, ensuring the well-being of everyone involved in the Championships.



# Need to report abuse, discrimination or harassment?

Scan the QR Code to access World Archery: Online Safeguarding Report Form





# **Archery venues**

### Qualifications and eliminations

Grant Park Field, Winnipeg Manitoba 478–492 Nathaniel St, Winnipeg, MB)









### Finals venue

CN Stage and Field, Winnipeg Manitoba 1 Forks Market Rd, Winnipeg, MB









# **Mixed team nomination form**

Country:	
Recurve U21 Mixed team:	
1	
2	
Recurve U18 Mixed team:	
1	
2	
Compound U21 Mixed team:	
1	
2	
Compound U18 Mixed team:	
1	
2	
Name and signature of Team Manager:	

The results of the highest scoring male and female members of the team will automatically be used for the mixed team event. If Team Managers wish to use other athletes of the team, pleased use this form to name the athletes that will be competing in the mixed team event.

Forms to be given to the World Archery head of technology or Chairman of the Judges Commission at least 15 minutes before the start of the mixed team competition.





# **Appeal Form**

☐ This is an intention of Appeal ☐ This is an appeal form	Appeal Fee
(please tick appropriate box)	<ul><li>50 USD</li><li>50 CHF</li></ul>
Team Manager of the following country:	• 50 EUR
Name of the Team Manager:	
Team (please name country) :	
Individual person (name) :	
Other (please specify) :	
This appeal is against:	
Description of Appeal or Protest:	
I believe this action is against the following rules (state article if known):	
Signature: Name in printing:	
Article 3.13.3.1:	
An intention to appeal when it might affect the progression of an athlete from one stage of the competition to the next, shall be exprewith the chairperson of the Tournament Judge Commission within five minutes of the end of the relevant round or match, whichever a match play rounds, the notice of intent to file an appeal shall be given within five minutes of the end of the match, or prior to the start of is first.	oplies. During the Finals of
Article 3.13.8:	
Jury decisions shall be minuted and reported to the appellant, the chairperson of the Tournament Judge Commission and the organise the next stage of the competition or before the awarding of prizes.	ers before the beginning of
Article 3.13.4:	
Amount paid is reviewed and determined by the World Archery Executive Board on an annual basis.	
Received on:/ Time:	
by Chairperson of the Tournament Judge Commission	
Signature: Name in printing:	





# **ASSUMPTION OF RISK AND RELEASE FORM**

- 1. This is a binding legal agreement that must be signed by all participants (hereinafter the "Participant") participating in the 2025 World Archery Youth Championships (the "Event"), or their parent or legal guardian, if they are a Minor, before they may participate in the Event.
- 2. By signing this agreement, I (or my parent or legal guardian, if I am a Minor) acknowledge that I have read and understand this agreement, that I have been, by the present, made aware that I can seek legal advice regarding this agreement, that I have executed this agreement voluntarily, and that this agreement is to be binding upon myself, my heirs, spouse, children, parents, guardians, next of kin, executors, administrators and legal or personal representatives.

### **ASSUMPTION OF RISKS**

- 4. I hereby acknowledge and understand that my participation in the Event carries certain standard, common and reasonably foreseeable risks, dangers and hazards inherent to the sport of archery.
- 5. In this regard, I (or my guardian, if I am a Minor) understand, acknowledge and accept full responsibility for the risks, dangers, and hazards which are inherent to the use of the any facilities while participating in the Event, which may involve entering lands, properties, facilities, structures, installations, vehicles or equipment (the "Premises") owned, leased, operated or otherwise controlled by Archery Canada, Archery Manitoba or WAYC25 Winnipeg Inc. (the "Organizations").
- 6. I also hereby acknowledge and understand that by signing the present agreement I acknowledge that I assume and am aware of or have been informed by the Organizations of the standard, common and reasonably foreseeable risks, dangers and hazards inherent to the sport of archery.

### **RELEASE**

In addition to assuming the risks of participating in the Event as described above, I also agree as follows:

- 7. That the Organizations and their coaches, trainers, instructors, agents, staff, volunteers, directors, sponsors, partners and representatives shall not be considered responsible for any death, personal injury, illness, damage, property damage, expense, loss of income or loss of any kind suffered by me during, or as a result of their participation in, the Event;
- 8. To WAIVE any and all claims that I may have now or in the future against any of the Organizations;
- 9. To FOREVER RELEASE the Organizations from any and all liability for any and all claims, demands, actions, damages (including direct, indirect, special and/or consequential), losses, actions, judgments, and costs (including legal fees) (collectively, the "Claims") which I may have now or in the future, that might arise out of, result from, or relate to my participation in the Event, even though such Claims may have been caused by any manner whatsoever, including but not limited to, the negligence, gross negligence, negligent rescue, omissions, carelessness, breach of contract and/or breach of any statutory duty of care of the Organizations; and
- 10. To hold harmless and indemnify the Organizations from any and all liability for any damage to property of or personal injury or death to any third party, resulting from my use of or presence in or at any facilities made available for the Event by the Organizations.

### FOR PARTICIPANTS WHO ARE MINORS:

As the parent or legal guardian of the Participant, I declare that I have parental and/or legal authority to enter sign this agreement on behalf of the Participant, and I acknowledge that I have read and understand this agreement, and that I have been, by the present, made aware that I can seek legal advice regarding this agreement, that I have executed this agreement voluntarily, and that this agreement is to be binding upon the Participant, myself, my heirs, spouse, children, parents, guardians, next of kin, executors, administrators and legal or personal representatives.

Name:		
Name of parent or legal guardian, if the Partici	ipant is a Minor:	
Signature:	Date:	